
1

January 22, 2014
MINUTES:  THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, Town of Hamden, held a Public Hearing and Regular 
Meeting on Thursday, January 16, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the 3rd Floor Conference Room, Hamden Government 
Center, 2750 Dixwell Avenue, Hamden, CT. with the following results: 

Commissioners in attendance: Jeff Vita, Chair
Fran Nelson 
Elaine Dove
Bill Reynolds
Steve Walsh, sitting for Wayne Chorney

 
 

Staff in attendance: Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner
Tim Lee, Assistant Town Attorney
Holly Masi, Zoning Enforcement Officer
Stacy Shellard, Commission Clerk

 Genovieve Bertolini, Stenographer

Mr. Vita called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m., reviewed the agenda and meeting procedures, and the panel 
introduced themselves. 

A.   Public Hearing

1) 13-6514 1950 Dixwell Avenue: Requesting a variance: Section 310.1.d, T-4 zone, To permit a 
  building's facade that will not be parallel to the street as required, BRB Development, LLC, 
  Applicant

 
Mr. Robert Baltramaitis, Professional Engineer, addressed the Commission and reviewed the application.   He 
described the site, which post development, will have a larger foot print and less impervious surface.  It will be a 
less intense use and low traffic generator than the SBC Restaurant, which has vacated the property.  The site is 
currently under contract to Lock Tight Storage.  Seventy five percent of the storage units will be used by residents, 
twenty percent by businesses and five percent by people in the military.     

Mr. Baltramaitis reviewed the A-2 Boundary Survey of the parcel.  The hardship is due to the curb line on Dixwell 
Avenue being skewed.  He reviewed the placement of the proposed building will be three stories with offices in a 
section of the building which will be one story.  

Mr. Nelson asked if the building could be placed so that it would be 130 degrees at the north corner.  Mr. Larry 
Smith, BRB Development, addressed the Commission and explained that this could not be done.  It would create a 



2

trapezoid and storage units are rectal linear.  Mr. Nelson said it will only affect one unit on the end.  Mr. Smith said 
it would impact the location of the electrical transformers.  A letter dated December 16, 2014 from Mr. Werner 
Brisske, Partners in Design Architects explains the ramifications of placing the building parallel to the street.  Mr. 
Smith discussed the location of the transformers and stated that the utilities on the site are serviced from Dixwell 
Avenue.

Mr. Vita asked what would be stored in the units and Mr. Smith replied personal belongings, such as, household 
items and antiques.  Sometimes someone who collects cars will use the storage facility.  Mr. Smith reviewed the 
history of the company and the security system that will be used to assure the safety of people using the facility.   

Mr. Walsh asked how many employees there would be and Mr. Smith replied two.  Mr. Smith said they would not 
live on the premises and they will be a high quality professional team. 
 
Ms. Dove asked how much the rent would be.  Mr. Smith replied that the rent would vary.  The size of the units 
will will vary in size from 5×5 square feet to 10×30 square feet, and the rent will depend on the market.  Mr. Vita 
asked if the time it takes to lease the units is because of the size of the facility and Mr. Smith replied yes.  Mr. Vita 
asked if there is a large turnover of the units.  Mr. Smith stated that self storage cannot be pre-leased.  He reviewed 
how the self storage business is driven and that people sometimes decide to use storage facilities on an impulse.  
Ms. Dove asked how many units would there be.  Mr. Smith explained that the final interior layout has not been 
completed, but that there would be approximately 500 to 550 units.  

Mr. Vita asked for comments in favor or against the application.  

Mr. Paul Woolfork, 65 Weybossett Street, addressed the Commission and stated that this property abuts his rear 
yard and it was determined that his shed is on their property.  Mr. Smith explained that when the survey was done it 
was determined that the shed is encroaching onto the property.  Mr. Smith said his company will work with Mr. 
Woolfork to remedy the issue.  Mr Baltramaitis noted that the last three parcels abutting the property where the 
encroachment occurs will not have any activity.  He reviewed the survey and the site plan where the abutting 
properties encroach onto this parcel with the Commission.  

Mr. Nelson explained that the abutting property owners should voice their concerns at the meeting for the Planning 
& Zoning Commission on January 28, 2014.  Mr. Smith stated that he is aware of the issues with the neighbors and 
will work with them to resolve.  

Mr. Vita closed the Public Hearing. 

B.  Regular Meeting

a.  Discussion and voting on Public Hearing items.

13-6514

Mr. Nelson made the motion to approve the application.  Mr. Reynolds seconded the motion.  Mr. Nelson stated 
that the hardship is the layout of the property vs. Dixwell Avenue.  The applicant has stated that the building will 
not run parallel with the street and to move it forward at one corner would affect the electrical service.  To bring 
the building into conformity is limited because of the mechanicals.   The motion passed unanimously.   

              b.  Approve Minutes of November 21, 2013     

Tabled until the February 20, 2014 meeting
     
              c.  Old Business  



3

There was none
        
              d.  New Business

Mr. Nelson stated that the lights on the UI poles in front of the Amity Wine & Liquor Store are blinding to the 
driver who is coming down Sherman Avenue to Whitney Avenue.  He said the lights were part of the UI's “Night  
the Light” program. Mr. Nelson discussed with the Planning staff the location of the lights and who should be 
responsible for them.  Ms. Holly Masi, Zoning Enforcement Officer, will refer this to the appropriate department.

Mr. Nelson stated that the Mount Carmel Volunteer Fire Department had to remove a cell tower from their roof 
because of its height.  He discussed with Mr. Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner, the zoning regulations for a cell 
tower and antennas.  Mr. Kops explained that an approval for a cell tower is done through the Citing Council and  
antennas would fall under the zoning regulations.  Mr. Nelson said that an antenna was put up on the Circular  
Avenue Fire Department today.  Ms. Masi will contact the Fire Chief to discuss.  

Mr. Vita asked what was being built on the property located between the Post Office and the Glenwood Restaurant.  
Mr. Kops stated it would be a mixed-use building.   

Mr.  Vita  discussed  the  proposed  public  self  storage  facility  that  was  approved  at  1950  Dixwell  Avenue.  
Restaurants have failed on this site because without a traffic signal light, it is hard to access the sight.  The self  
storage facility will be a low intensity use. 

Ms. Dove stated that the house next to the Temple Beth Shalom on Whitney Avenue has placed a fence next to the  
sidewalk.  Ms. Masi explained that there are no setback requirements for a fence, and that the fence be 4 feet in  
height or less.  

              e.  Adjournment

Ms. Dove made the motion to adjourn.  Mr. Walsh seconded the motion.  Therefore, the motion passed 
unanimously. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m.

Submitted by: ______________________________________________
Stacy Shellard, Clerk of the Commission 


	A. Public Hearing

